








































RFP - Strategic Plan Monitoring Addendum 1

● Strategic Plan Monitoring RFP Q&A
● Is ASD seeking a COTS (Commercial-Off-the-Shelf) product that can be customized and

configured to fulfill the requirements or is ASD open to a custom-built solution

(built-from-scratch)?

○ We are open to a service and product that meets the expectations in the Scope of Work.

● As mentioned in the RFP, the proposed solution needs to integrate with multiple data sources.

Kindly list the 3rd party systems.

○ Skyward, PowerSchool, and Sapphire

● Will the City accept digital signatures on all the required documents?

○ Yes, the District

● How many reports and dashboards need to be built for this engagement?

○ Dashboards must align with the priorities, goals, and actions of the strategic plan.

● As mentioned in the RFP – “Improve communication and collaboration among stakeholders by

providing a centralized platform for information sharing.” Is ASD seeking a feature similar to a

group chat or a forum? If yes, does this also need file sharing as a feature? Kindly share more

details on this.

○ No, the communication is through internal and external facing dashboards.

● Is there an existing solution? If yes, can you please share the name of the incumbent vendor?

○ No, there isn’t an existing vendor.

● Can you please share the list of data that will flow from the 3rd party systems to the new solution?

○ The relevant data points are Student, financial, assessment, and progress monitoring data.

● We are assuming that all the 3rd party systems have existing APIs built for integration. Is our

assumption correct?

○ Yes

● Kindly share the approx. budget that has been allocated for this engagement.

○ The budget is contingent upon the RFP.

● What is the volume of data (in GB) and the years of data (no. of years) that need to be migrated to

the new solution?

○ TBD; the Strategic Plan is new and in operation this year.

● How many dashboards and reports need to be migrated, and what is the complexity level of

these?



○ Dashboards aren’t migrated into the system. Data from other sources is used to create

dashboards.

● What will be the total no. of admin users? What is the expected year-on-year increase in the no. of

admin?

○ Approximately 130 administrators

● What is the expected kick-off date for this engagement and the go-live date of the solution?

○ The Kick-off is contingent upon the timeline, with the expectation of use prior to July

2025.

● We will provide Level 2 and Level 3 support to ASD, however, we wanted to know if ASD needs

Level 1 support as well for the end users or if ASD will be providing it to the end-users.

○ Level One Support is needed.

● Is the work required to be performed on-site or can it be performed remotely from the US,

offshore (India), or in a hybrid model?

○ On-site and hybrid models are appropriate.

● Kindly provide the following details w.r.t. requirements:

Detail the number of data sources other than the ones mentioned in the RFP

Size of data contained in each data source

Size of the data collected on a daily basis

Total number of tables in the data sources that need to be modelled

Approximate number of reports to be generated

Volume, frequency, and types of data coming from the data sources

○ The data are raw data points from Sapphire, PowerSchool, and Skyward.

● Please provide the preferred solution technology (Microsoft SQL Database/Oracle Data

Warehouse/Snowflake Data Warehouse/others) for the future data storage solution?

○ Not applicable

● Please provide the preferred solution technology (Microsoft Power BI/Oracle Analytics

Cloud/Tableau/others) for the future data visualization solution?

○ Microsoft Power BI

● " ...Include references specifically related to strategic plan implementation and progress

monitoring in urban settings, with diverse staff experience..." - Page 10

○ Do all the 3 references necessarily have to be related to "strategic plan implementation

within urban settings" We have one (1) reference of a US-based School District, but the

work involved was not related to what you've described. Given this reality, are we

eligible to respond to this bid?



○ The description is the expectation.

● Could ASD provide more details about the key stakeholders who will use the dashboard? Are

they school leaders, district officials, or other personnel?

○ District and School Leaders will use the Dashboard. Staff, students, families, and the

community will have access to the displayed data.

● Are there specific challenges or limitations with the current system that this new dashboard

should address?

○ There isn’t a current platform.

● How many reports/dashboards District expects from this project?

○ The dashboards must reflect and align with the Strategic Plan.

● How many KPIs (Key Performance Indicators) are required from these dashboards? Can the

District provide some descriptions of those KPIs?

○ The KPIs are in development.

● Are there specific security or compliance standards (e.g., FERPA for student data) that the

dashboard needs to adhere to?

○ Yes

● Can ASD provide examples or references for the type of visualizations or layouts preferred for

the dashboard?

○ No, we do not have a current platform

● Will real-time data integration be required, or is periodic data synchronization sufficient?

○

● What level of data cleaning, transformation, and validation is expected? Are there existing ETL

pipelines or workflows we can build upon?

○

● Are there any third-party APIs or middleware involved in gathering data?

○

● Could ASD clarify the extent of user training required? Should it include comprehensive training

sessions, workshops, or just instructional materials?

○ Include a comprehensive training model.

● Will ongoing support and maintenance involve developing new features, or will it primarily focus

on troubleshooting and updates?

○ Ongoing support

● How will collaboration and communication among stakeholders be facilitated? Should the

dashboard include real-time collaboration features?



● Will the project follow a phased implementation approach, or should it be delivered as a complete

solution?

○ This request is contingent upon what is readily available for use.

● Is the dashboard expected to be adaptable for other strategic plans or future needs? If yes, what

level of customization is required?

○ We are focused on the current strategic plan that is through 2030.

● Is it allowed to use subcontractor and their references for this project?

○ Sub contractors are allowed but need to be mentioned in the proposal and any potential

agreements.

● Can firms also use their subcontractors' references to meet the reference requirements listed in

this solicitation? No, the references need to be that of the main contractor.

○

● Is it mandatory for firms to have prior experience providing online learning services specifically

in school districts, or can they meet this experience requirement by citing their experience

providing online learning services in other sectors?

○ Prior experience needs to show the contractor is capable of delivering what the ASD is

asking for.

● Can firms also cite their subcontractor's experience to meet the experience requirements listed in

this solicitation? No.

○

● Can firms cite their experience from ongoing contracts/projects to meet the experience

requirements listed under this solicitation?Yes

○

● Can firms cite their experience from private sector engagements to meet the experience

requirements listed under this solicitation?Yes

○

● Could ASD please specify if there is a preferred format for firms to submit the proposal's cost?

○ There is no specification for a cost table or proposal, cost and fees should be clearly

outlined and reflect the services to be provided.

● Can firms provide commercial references?

○ Yes, the experience needs to be relevant to the services requested.

● Can firms provide references from former clients, or are they required to provide references

exclusively from current clients?

○ Former or current clients are fine.



● Could ASD please elaborate on the specific information vendors must provide to demonstrate the

required experience listed under the section "Required Proposal Components" (e.g., case studies,

references, etc.)?

○ The required experience should reflect the scope of work described in the proposal

request.

● Could ASD please clarify whether firms are required to address all the points listed under the

section "Required Proposal Components" in point 2, "Proposal Narrative" (under the section

"Deliverables"), in their proposal? If not, could ASD specify whether firms must include the

information requested under the section "Required Proposal Components" in a different section of

their proposal? Proposer can include the relevant data where they see fit to address the

requirements of the proposal.

○

● Under the section "Deliverables" in point 5, the following is asked: "Project lead and staff

biographies and resumes illustrating relevant experience." Could ASD please clarify whether

firms must provide team biographies and resumes separately, or if they can include lead and staff

biographies within their resumes? They can be structured however the proposer sees fit in their

proposal.

○

● Is it mandatory to provide references from educational clients? It is ideal.

○

● Could ASD please clarify if firms are supposed to provide their response to the Evaluation

Criteria on page 11?

○ No response is needed; the Scope of Work and Design are the components for a response,

● Please clarify what contact details are required in the references.

○ Name, email, contact number, and website address

● Is it mandatory for firms to provide evidence of increased student achievements? Will this be a

disqualifying/non-responsive factor for the vendors in case they fail to provide this?

○ We considered evidence of effectiveness.

● Describe your proven success in providing online learning services in comparable urban school

districts.- Could ASD please clarify what documentation or evidence can be attached under this

requirement?

● This is stated in the proposal: Share sample reports, materials, resources, and methods for

progress monitoring and goal attainment, highlighting your commitment to meeting the distinct



needs for a system of continuous improvement.'- Can firms attach sample reports from

commercial clients or subcontractors under this requirement?

○ Yes

● Under the section "Deliverables," point 6 states: "Include references specifically related to

strategic plan implementation and progress monitoring in urban settings." Could ASD please

clarify what "urban settings" means under this instruction?

○ Diversity in demographics, population, infrastructure, and economic status

● Can firms replace the proposed staff members with equally qualified consultants if they are no

longer available after the award notice?

○ Yes

● Could ASD please clarify where firms should include Appendix 1 in their proposal response?

○ This can be included where the proposer sees fit in their proposal submission.

● Is there any mandatory goal or preferred goal for Small and Minority Businesses, Women's

Business Enterprises, and Labor Surplus Area Firms?

○ There is no mandatory goal.

● If a goal has been established, is there a preferred certification that agencies should hold?

○ No

● We are certified as an MBE in California by the NMSDC. Can our certification be used to meet

the goal, if applicable?"

○ N/A

● Could you please confirm if our understanding is correct that Section M: Bonding Requirements

is not required for this contract?

○ It is the responsibility of any firm or organization making a proposal to meet all federal,

state, and local laws and requirements.

● If we submit our proposal electronically via RFP@allentownsd.org, there is no need to send

hard-copies as well?

○ No

● The scope of work includes integration with existing district systems, such as project

management tools, CRM, databases etc. Could you please advice which systems these are by

name and clarify whether 1-way integration or 2-way integration would be required? Any

examples of fields/content that would need to flow between the systems would also be helpful.

● Sapphire, Powerschool, and Skyward are our current systems.

● We understand that the Pennsylvania DOE has developed a Comprehensive Planning Web

Application to support continuous improvement. What connection(s) does this web application



have in the strategic planning process at ASD? Is there integration required with this system? Can

you please explain how this system is being used and whether there is a connection to this

project?

○ The Strategic Plan is incorporated in the Comprehensive Plan. The Strategic Plan

Dashboard will be operated by the District.

● We have carefully reviewed ASD's Strategic Plan, entitled, Lighting the Way: A Blueprint

● for Innovation and Excellence 2030. Is this the strategic plan that is being referenced in the RFP

for which the interactive dashboards and progress monitoring will be aligned to?

○ Yes

● Is the district looking for a vendor that can also develop a data collection/forms tool to support

school plans / Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) plans? It appears that these are

currently uploaded to your website in PDF or Word format. Is the district looking to bring these

school plans into a web-based platform in order to facilitate the progress monitoring described in

the RFP?

○ There are two additional RFPs for a Data Dashboard and Instructional Coaching.

● Does the district have any interest in expanding the usage of the system beyond strategic plan

dashboards and progress monitoring i.e. other use cases / data collection / dashboard

requirements?

○ There are two additional RFPs for a Data Dashboard and Instructional Coaching.

● There are several proposal requirements related to online learning services, curriculum,

instructional support, coaching, and consultation to support ELL students and closing equity gaps.

Is ASD looking for a technology partner that can also provide these professional services?

○ There are two additional RFPs for a Data Dashboard and Instructional Coaching.

● Regarding the proposal framework itself, would you like vendors to respond to each of the

following sections? There is some overlap with a few of the questions so we just wanted to

confirm which sections specifically you require in the proposal.

○ Respond to the proposal requirements.


